From: Roger Pike <roger@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Sent: 12 December 2025 10:30:11 UTC+00:00

To: "Anna Tidey" <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: "Info" <info@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Subject: FW: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Attachments: Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)- 25_ECO_10_94 - Dec

v2.pdf, Biodiversity Enhancement Detail - Dec 2025_1.0 - V2.pdf, BNG Statement - DM_23_2687 - Dec
2025-1.0 - V2.pdf, Pond Creation Method Statement - 25_POND_10_94 - 1.0 - Dec v2.pdf

Hi Anna,
Sorry for the bombardment of emails across the last few days.

Please can the attached documents supersede the originally submitted. These are now fully up-
to-date with the reference numbers etc added.

Many thanks,

Best regards

Roger Pike
Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv

AR,
NEIL PIKE

ARCHITECTS

5™ Floor Arkwright House Michigan House,
Parsonage Gardens 17-15 Chorley Mew Road,
Manchester Bolton

M3 2LF BL140QR

T—0161 667 23020 T- 01204 3592233

F- 01204528505
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From: Roger Pike

Sent: 10 December 2025 16:15

To: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Hi Anna,

Further to my emails last week, please find attached as promised, the following:


https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.neilpikearchitects.co.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canna.tidey%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Ce0e08befecf948f33c4808de396970f0%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C639011322725648145%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2Fv5JuJkbeiJhVqGG%2FWVWxsFES588E3t5VFP3PrkPqdk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.neilpikearchitects.co.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Canna.tidey%40midsussex.gov.uk%7Ce0e08befecf948f33c4808de396970f0%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C639011322725583622%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=zZ8dsT2zr%2Bw2zP54ROusRTuvCl2lVClpzxTKg1%2FFvPQ%3D&reserved=0

¢ Revised Proposed Site Plan
e Construction Environmental Management Plan

This concludes all the outstanding information and we therefore look forward to agreeing on an
extension of time for this Application.

FYI - You will note on Page 3 of the attached Construction Environmental Management Plan,

that the input of the Application reference is outstanding (red bold writing). | have been waiting
for them to update this and re-issue the report for over a week, however am yet to receive the
updated version. When | do, | will forward on to you.

One other query at this stage Anna; and I’'m happy to discuss this with you in more detail if
necessary:

Our client, as you know, is keen to start work on this site upon receipt of a planning approval
notice; and it is our intention to ensure as many pre-commencement conditions are dealt with as
part of this Reserved Matters Application. | realise this query may be dependent on the
responses from the L.A. consultees, however there is an existing issue, as the submitted reports
highlight, regarding Great Crested Newts.

Our client has a few options to consider in respect of this. One of them is to have an updated
survey carried out on site (within the allowed timeframe), as there was a previously undertaken
survey submitted with the Outline Application, which | can provide again for you if you feel this is
relevant as part of this Application.

However, the window for this survey is at specific times of the year and whilst the determination
date of this Application is TBC, our query at this stage is whether a condition relating to an
updated survey for GCN can be applied, which would enable work to start on site, but only in
specific areas of the site perhaps, or more accurately perhaps, only works that do not relate to
the pond?

If you can give this some thought and advise accordingly it would be appreciated. The initial

survey deemed no presence of GCN, however the alternative option to an updated survey is
obtaining a licence which comes with enormous associated costs, so we wanted to raise this
query to assist in determining the most efficient and cost effective way forward.

Many thanks and | look forward to hearing from you.

Kind regards
Roger Pike

Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv
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From: Roger Pike

Sent: 05 December 2025 09:16

To: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: Info <info@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Subject: FW: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Anna,
As promised, please find attached further information as follows:

Drainage Info — 2no. documents

Ecology — Pond Creation Method Statement
Ecology — Biodiversity Enhancement Detail
Ecology — BNG Statement

To follow therefore — Revised Site Plan & Construction Environmental Management Plan.
We will get these to you as soon as possible.

Kind regards

Roger Pike
Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv

AR,
NEIL PIKE

ARCHITECTS
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From: Roger Pike

Sent: 05 December 2025 09:14

To: 'Anna Tidey' <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: Info <info@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Subject: RE: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Hi Anna,

Thanks for your patience on this.

We are now in receipt of the updated Drainage, Landscaping, Ecology and Arboricultural
Assessments for the above project. The documents are quite big so | will send in separate
emails and want to start getting this information to you. | have attached above the following for
you:

¢ Proposed Landscaping Scheme
¢ Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement

Also attached are revised floor plans and elevation drawings, highlighting and referencing
specific materials as discussed, as well as the inclusion of the car barns (with solar panels) and
amended cycle/refuse storage provisions.

I am just waiting for a sample/detail of the intended roof tile for the proposed dwellings and will
forward this to you immediately upon receipt. We are also just updating our site plan in
accordance with the tree survey information.

Can you please confirm receipt of the above and outline your anticipated timescales for this
application accordingly. We understand and are happy for this to be extended into 2026.

| will send a direct follow up email with further information.
Kind regards

If you require any further information or have any queries at this stage please let me know.

Roger Pike

Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv
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From: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>
Sent: 19 November 2025 13:55

To: Roger Pike <roger@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>
Subject: RE: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Hi Roger
Thank you for your email and the attached preliminary plans.

| note that the Proposed site plan shows the revised pond provision for the new houses,
as well as the position and layout of the new car barns, revised access arrangements
and bin/cycle store provision. The pond issue will be considered following advice from
the Drainage team and Ecologist in due course.

In terms of the frontage - | believe that this arrangement provides for an improved layout
for the new houses, and | prefer the internal bin/cycle stores. The revised layout means
that these will be out of sight on the approach to the houses and | feel that the revised
layout will allow for improved landscaping opportunities, which could be detailed on
accompanying planting plans.

| believe that a natural timber cladding would be preferable to composite cladding for
the enclosed car port side walls, ideally feather edged boarding, or for a more
contemporary appearance, hit and miss spaced horizontal boards. The finish could be
natural wood or black stained.

From my discussions with Andrew on site | understand that the flat roof areas on the car
ports will be utilised for solar panel installations. The proposed number, layout, angle
and height of the solar panels should be indicated on the car port elevations and on an
accompanying roof layout plan.

| note the proposed handed Floor Plans for Plot 2. The overall footprint dimensions
appear to correspond to those approved at Outline stage.
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Materials - Guidance on vernacular Sussex construction materials is provided in the
MSDC Design Guide, see pages 101-102, on the MSDC website via this link:
Supplementary and Other Planning Documents - Mid Sussex District Council

| discussed with Andrew on our site visit possible window colours, brick and tile options
for the proposed houses. | would expect the material finishes to reflect the existing
house at Woodside Grange, but | am also mindful of the colour palette and material
choices on the adjacent Taylor Wimpey houses on the Ockley Park development, see
photos attached which show the site context.

| suggest that local bricks include Freshfield Lane 1st Quality or Chailey stock type
bricks, which have a dark brown/red/part burnt appearance, see colour images below.
For the roofs | would hope that a small plain brown toned roof tile would be chosen, and
white, or dark grey toned windows, if a more contemporary appearance is preferred.

Product / Building Materials / Bricks & Blocks / Facing Bricks

Michelmersh Facing Brick Freshfield Lane 1st Quality - Pack of 40(

700175
Be the first to review this product
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Product / Building Materials / Bricks & Blocks / Facing Bricks

Ibstock Brick Chailey Rustic - Pack Of 370

980033

Be the first to review this product
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£1,118|39 PER PACK

£3.02

TRADE PRICE £1,

SAVE WITH A TRADE ACC

= 1

Delivery Available Unavi
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Add to Quote list

Once the outstanding matters are resolved | shall be happy to accept and upload the
amended plans, and arrange the readvertisement of the application, send out new
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neighbour letters and consultation requests. | will be able to advise you then on a
revised Decision Target Date.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Regards

Anna

Submit your planning application online.
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk

Anna Tidey BA(Hons) MPhil MRTPI
Planning Officer
Development Management

Tel: +44 (0)1444 477342
anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk http://www.midsussex.gov.uk

Certified Carbon Literate
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Working together for a Better Mid Sussex.

b% - SAVE A TREE only print this email if absolutely necessary.
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From: Roger Pike <roger@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>
Sent: 19 November 2025 12:19

To: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: Info <info@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Subject: FW: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Hi Anna,

Hope you’re well.

Further to our email dialogue below and your email from November 3" re the car barns, you
mentioned that you would be happy to look over preliminary plans prior to formal submission
and upload of these on to the system. This is appreciated and subsequently, | have attached
these for you above.

Attached therefore are as follows:

o Proposed site plan - showing position of new car barns, updated access arrangements
and bin/cycle store provision within

e Proposed Car Barn - floor plans and elevations

¢ Proposed Floor plans for Plot 2 — Note — we have handed plot 2 (the dwelling to the
right) to ensure the front room at ground floor level on the right-hand side of the floor
plan is a study. The two plots are effectively mirrored, in their entirety.

You will note from these drawings, that we have rearranged the site access to the two plots,
positioned the car barns appropriately to suit the site and ensure any impact on the dwellings is
minimized. The refuse and cycle stores are contained within and now hidden, which is a logical,
yet significant improvement. There is also room for at least 4 parking spaces, which is sufficient
and in accordance with the outline approval.

| would appreciate your comments on this and we can then prepare for formal submission,
along with the outstanding updated survey work, which is nearing completion.

One final matter | wanted to discuss with you also, were the materials to the houses.. We are
intended to provide a facing brick to the dwellings (in their entirety) and my client mentioned a
brick you discussed with him on site. Can you please advise on this/a preferred facing brick as
we are intent on having all materials approved under this application. We will then provide
revised elevations to supersede those previously submitted.

A composite panelling is then intended for the car barn (where required) to minimize the
permanence and impact on the street scene.

Happy to discuss if necessary and look forward to your thoughts,

Kind regards
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Roger Pike

Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv
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From: Roger Pike
Sent: 11 November 2025 12:55

Michigan House,

17-15 Chorley New Road,
Bolton

BL1 40R

T- 01204 352233
F- 01204528505

To: 'Anna Tidey' <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: Info <info@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Subject: RE: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Hi Anna,

Please find attached a land contamination report for this site. | have had approval from the land
owner (and applicant of the adjacent plot) that we can submit this document as part of this

application.

If you need me to send email proof, please let me know.

Could you add this to the application please and forward to the relevant consultee.

Furthermore, we have had our revised drainage strategy and are now working with the ecologist
to ensure all proposals align. We will then send a package of information to you.

Kind regards
Roger Pike

Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv
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From: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>
Sent: 03 November 2025 15:19

To: Roger Pike <roger@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>
Subject: RE: DM/25/1800 - Woodside Grange, Hassocks

Dear Roger
Thank you for your email from last week, dated 29.10.2025.

| am glad to hear that you are making progress with the drainage and
revised ecology information. The Decision Target Date has been extended
to 19.12.2025, but this is likely to need further amendment, and | shall
review this once the amended plans and supporting information is
submitted

| have reviewed the submitted plans, Officers report and the Decision Note
for the Outline application under DM/23/2687. | have also reviewed
Government Guidance regarding types of applications and what should be
included in an Outline and Reserved Matters applications, see Making an
application - GOV.UK

The Outline application DM/23/2687 covered: Access, Layout and Scale.
The current Reserved Matters application DM/25/1800 refers to the
Appearance and Landscaping for the development of the two houses.

| am of the opinion that the addition of detached car ports, to include the bin
stores and cycle stores, but located in a more discrete position, sited
forward of the houses, with a landscaped frontage, could be added as an
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amendment to the current Reserved Matters application. The approved
parking spaces would still be provided and EV chargers could be sited on
the flat roofs. | would recommend that the carports are of a single or twin
design to accommodate 1 or 2 of the 3 approved parking spaces for each
of the houses, to avoid them being overlarge.

| would be happy to look over any preliminary plans before they are
formally submitted, if that is of assistance. Upon receipt the amended plans
will need to be readvertised.

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

b% - SAVE A TREE Only print this email if absolutely necessary.
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From: Roger Pike <roger@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>
Sent: 29 October 2025 14:22

To: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>
Cc: Info <info@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>

Subject: RE: Hassocks Query

Thanks Anna, | will do that.

FYI — We are making progress with our drainage consultant, as well as the revised ecology
information.

| am hoping to have a further update for you next week following some scheduled site visits and
applied strategies and amendments to the site plan etc.

One question | have in the meantime, is with regards to the car barns which you discussed on
site with Andrew (my client). Are you receptive to these, and if we included them within the
proposal (one car barn per dwelling) can they be determined under this reserved matters
application?

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
www.neilpikearchitects.co.uk

From: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>
Sent: 23 October 2025 17:59

To: Roger Pike <roger@neilpikearchitects.co.uk>
Subject: RE: Hassocks Query

Hi Roger
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| have reviewed the information on file and | cannot see a name or contact details. |
suggest that you contact the applicants for this information.

Please note that | shall be on leave from the end of today, returning on Thursday 3oth
October 2025.

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
Sent: 21 October 2025 14:38
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To: Anna Tidey <anna.tidey@midsussex.gov.uk>
Subject: Hassocks Query

Hi Anna,
Quick question, which I’'m hoping you can possibly help.

I am looking online for the Phase 1 Desk Top Study submitted and approved as part of the DOC
Application DM/25/0240 for the proposed dwelling at Woodside Grange.

I am trying to get in touch with the consultant who provided the report. Are you able to access
and send me the document or the consultant’s details?

Any assistance would be appreciated, thanks.

Kind regards

Roger Pike
Roger Pike BA(Hons) PGDipSurv

AR,
NEIL PIKE

ARCHITECTS

5™ Floor Arkwright House Michigan House,
Parsonage Gardens 17-15 Chorley Mew Road,
Manchester Bolton

M3 2LF BL1 40R

T—0161 667 3030 T- 01204 3592233

F- 01204528505
www.neilpikearchitects.co.uk

The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the
Freedom of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is
legally exempt from disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole
or part of this email to a third party making a request for information about the subject
matter of this email. This email and any attachments may contain confidential
information and is intended only to be seen and used by the named addressees. If you
are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, copying, alteration or forwarding of
this email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received this email in error
please notify the sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458 166 and
remove this email and its attachments from your system. The views expressed within
this email and any attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex
District Council. We have taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software
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viruses, but we advise you to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this
email and any attachments. Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible
for any damage, loss or liability of any kind suffered in connection with this email and
any attachments, or which may result from reliance on the contents of this email and
any attachments.
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Title: Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)

Project: Woodside Grange, Reserved Matters Application for Two Dwellings
Planning reference: DM/23/2687

Document reference: ROAVR-CEMP-WG-vO.1

Date: 11th November 2025

Status: First Issue

Purpose and scope

This CEMP sets out the environmental controls, method statements and
supervision required to manage construction risks to habitats, protected species,
water and trees during the delivery of two dwellings and associated works at
Woodside Grange. It consolidates and updates mitigation and management
measures contained within previously submitted ecological and arboricultural
documents and aligns them with the latest drainage and plot layout information.
It applies to all contractors and sub-contractors on site from pre-commencement
to completion and handover into the Landscape and Ecology Management Plan
(LEMP) period.

The CEMP is a live document. No works may commence until all
pre-commencement actions and approvals listed in Section 5 are satisfied. Any
change in design, sequencing or methodology that could alter environmental risk
shall be approved by the Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW) and, where relevant,
the Project Arboriculturist prior to implementation.

Project description and site context

The site comprises a previously consented plot for two detached dwellings and
gardens with an existing pond feature and boundary woodland/scrub with trees
of varying quality. The reserved matters proposal includes removal of the existing
pond and creation of two new wildlife/attenuation ponds located further to the
rear of each plot, together with associated drainage infrastructure, landscaping
and external works. Construction activities include enabling works, vegetation
clearance, excavation, foundations, services, hardstanding, building erection,
SuDS, soft landscaping and habitat creation.





Supporting documents to which this CEMP is tethered include:

- Decision Notice for outline permission and associated ecology conditions
- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal and ecological responses
- GCN survey report and eDNA results dated 2023
- Revised ecological response
- Flood Risk Assessment and SuDS Report: 16920-01 Woodside Grange Plot B -
FRA & SuDS Report
- Drainage layout: 16920-HOP-ZZ-XX-DR-C-0511 PLOT B LAYOUT
- Proposed Site Plan: K1177-01 A3 PROPOSED SITE PLAN
- Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) and Tree Protection Plan (TPP)

Where details differ between drawings, the most recent LPA-approved versions
will prevail. Drawing registers are provided in Appendix A.

Statutory and policy framework

Construction will comply with, inter alia:

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended);
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017,
Protection of Badgers Act 1992;

Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006;
Environment Act 202T;

Clean Air Act 1993;

Environmental Protection Act 1990;

BS 42020:2022 Biodiversity — Planning and development;
CIRIA C532 Control of water pollution;

CIRIA C741 Environmental good practice on site;

CIRIA C753 The SuDS Manual;

BS 5837:2012 Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction;
relevant Pollution Prevention Guidelines (GPPs);

and LPA policies and conditions.

Where protected species licensing is required, works will only proceed under an
agreed licence or District Level Licence (DLL) route as applicable.





Roles, responsibilities and communication

Client: — overall responsibility for compliance with planning conditions and legal
obligations.

Principal Contractor (PC): — day-to-day delivery of CEMP measures, provision of
resources, induction, briefings and records.

Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW): ROAVR Group - deliver toolbox talks, ecological
watching brief, method approvals, hold-stop authority, audits and reporting.

Project Arboriculturist: ROAVR Group - implement AMS/TPP, supervise works
near RPAs, update tree constraints and agree on any variations.

Drainage Engineer: — ensure construction aligns with approved SuDS details and
maintenance access.

Landscape Architect: — coordinate planting specifications and habitat creation
with ECoW and drainage team.

Site Manager/Environmental Manager: — maintain CEMP file, permits to dig,
chemical/fuel registers, spill kit checks, and communication log.

Emergency Contacts: Listed in Appendix B and displayed on the site notice board.
Communication protocol:

- Weekly environmental coordination meeting between PC, ECoW and Project
Arboriculturist during high-risk phases such as pond creation.

- 48-hour notification to ECoW before any clearance, soil stripping, pond
decommissioning or works within 10 m of water or within Root Protection Areas

(RPAS).

- Stop works triggers and incident reporting procedure per Section 19.





Pre-commencement actions and approvals

No works must begin until:

LPA has approved this CEMP, the Biodiversity Enhancement Layout, and the
biodiversity-sensitive lighting scheme required by condition.

AMS and TPP have been updated by the arboricultural consultant and accepted
by the LPA where required, reflecting the final pond locations and any access
tracks.

Drainage drawings confirm both new ponds and associated SuDS elements are
within the application red line and coordinated to avoid RPAs; any necessary
low-impact construction methods are specified.

GCN pathway agreed: either a confirmed District Level Licence enrolment with
NatureSpace for the impact zone, or a programme for updated surveys in the
permitted 2026 season with interim RAMs agreed with the LPA and ECoW for
low-risk enabling works only.

ECoW induction and toolbox talks delivered to all site personnel; method
statements signed off for vegetation clearance, pond decommissioning, silt
control, and any night-time works.

Pollution prevention measures installed: wheel wash, drip trays, bunded fuel store,
spill kits, silt fencing and settlement measures.

Site environmental constraints plan issued to all operatives showing no-go areas,
RPAs, buffers, haul routes and material storage zones.





Environmental risk register and control hierarchy

A site-specific risk register is provided in Appendix C. Principal risks include
potential harm to protected species, damage to retained trees and soils, silt and
pollutant runoff to surface waters and new ponds, lighting impacts, dust and
noise. Controls adopt the hierarchy of avoidance, reduction, mitigation and
compensation, with design-led avoidance preferred.

Ecological baseline and constraints summary

Habitats: Mixed garden, scrub and treed boundaries, existing pond to be
decommissioned, proposed two wildlife/attenuation ponds, grassland and
ornamental planting. Habitat creation and enhancement to be delivered through
ponds, native shrub and tree planting, hedgerow gapping and species-rich grass
margins.

Great crested newt (GCN): 2023 eDNA evidence now time-expired. Updated
survey required in the 2026 survey window unless DLL is adopted. Until new
evidence or licence is in place, the site will be managed under precautionary
RAMs agreed with the LPA for low-risk activities only, with ECoW oversight. No
destructive works to the existing pond or excavation of new ponds without the
agreed licence/clearance route.

Bats: Roost potential confined to mature trees and nearby structures outside the
direct work footprint. Foraging and commuting likely along treed boundaries. A
dark corridor strategy will be implemented in line with the approved lighting
plan.

Dormouse: Suitable boundary habitats present locally. Clearance will follow
staged methodology with seasonal timing and ECoW checks.

Reptiles and hedgehog: Low to moderate risk in rough grass and scrub margins.
Two-stage cutting, hand search and phased displacement to retained habitat will
be adopted.

Nesting birds: All vegetation clearance outside the core nesting season where
practicable or under pre-clearance check by ECoW within 24 hours if within
March to August inclusive.

Badger: No sett works proposed; vigilance for outliers; stop works and ecologist
check if any holes or signs discovered.





Invasive species: Contractor to report any suspected invasive non-native plants;
biosecurity protocol in Section 13 applies.

General site rules

- No-go areas: RPAs, retained habitats and buffers fenced with robust, continuous
barrier before works commence.

- Storage: Materials, spoil, chemicals and welfare located outside RPAs and pond
buffer zones.

- Refuelling: Designated bunded area with spill Kits; no refuelling within 10 m of
drains or water.

- Housekeeping: Litter control, covered skips, daily checks of silt and dust controls.

- Access and haul routes: Fixed routes on ground protection where near RPAs;
speed limit 5 mph.

Arboriculture and soils protection

- Tree protection per the TPP to be erected before any other works and remain
until completion of heavy construction.

- Works within or adjacent to RPAs only under arboricultural supervision and
using low-impact methods such as hand digging, air spade, cellular confinement
systems and no-dig surfaces where specified in the AMS.

- No changes to soil levels within RPAs; no irrigation lines, drainage, or pond
margins within RPAs unless explicitly designed and approved by the Project
Arboriculturist and ECoW.

- Topsoil and subsoil to be stripped, stored and reinstated following Defra
Construction Code of Practice for the Sustainable Use of Soils on Construction
Sites, with separate stockpiles, height limits, weed control and moisture
protection.





Water management and pollution prevention

- A site-specific surface water management plan will be installed prior to
groundworks, integrating silt fences, straw bales, temporary bunds and
settlement tanks sized to anticipated flows.

- Washout facilities for concrete will be contained and located away from drains
and RPAs. No washout to ground.

- Fuel and chemicals stored in locked, bunded containers with 110 percent
capacity; COSHH data sheets held on site.

- All drains mapped and protected with gully socks or booms during high-risk
operations.

- Spill response: Immediate stop of source, use of spill kits, protection of drains,

notification to Site Manager, ECoW and statutory bodies where required; record in
incident log.

Vegetation clearance and enabling works

- Pre-works ECoW briefing and walkover to confirm constraints fencing and no-go
zones.

- Staged clearance outside bird breeding season where practicable. Where not
practicable, ECoOW pre-clearance checks within 24 hours and nesting exclusion

buffers maintained until young have fledged.

- Two-stage cut for rough grass and scrub: strim to 150 mm, leave 24-48 hours,
then reduce to 50 mm, directionally working towards retained habitat.

- Arisings collected and removed to prevent mulching over potential refugia.





Protected species method statements

Great crested newt (GCN)

- Legal status and compliance: Works that risk killing/injuring or damaging
breeding sites or resting places are unlawful without a licence where impacts are
likely. Two compliance pathways are available: DLL enrolment or updated survey
leading to LPA-agreed RAMs or a mitigation licence if required.

- Pre-commencement: No intrusive works to the existing pond, pond margins or
excavation of new ponds until DLL certificate is issued or updated survey confirms
a non-licensable risk with LPA agreement. Low-risk activities away from the pond
may proceed under RAMs with ECoW agreement.

- RAMs for low-risk areas: Toolbox talk; staged vegetation cut; hand search of
refugia; supervised soil strip in 100 mm layers with frequent checks; exclusion of
night working in high-risk zones; pitfall trapping is not proposed unless required
by licence.

- Exclusion fencing: Not proposed unless required by licence or DLL methodology.
Any fence design and timing to be agreed with Natural England/NatureSpace as
applicable.

- Discovery protocol: If any amphibian resembling GCN is found, stop works,
protect the location, contact ECoW, implement advice which may include
temporary suspension and liaison with licensing authority.

Hazel dormouse

- Clearance of woody vegetation above 0.5 m to be scheduled December to
February where practicable, with ECoW presence to check for nests in bramble
and low shrubs. Ground clearance and stump removal to follow April to November
with staged approach. If any dormouse nests or individuals are found, stop works
and seek licensing advice.

- Hedgerow and woodland edges retained and enhanced; no lighting onto these
features.





Bats

- Lighting control per Section 14 to maintain dark corridors along boundary
vegetation.

- Any tree surgery to potential roost features only under arboricultural supervision
with ECoW advice; soft felling techniques where needed and contingency for
roost discovery.

Reptiles and hedgehog

- Two-stage cut and hand search; directional clearance towards retained habitat;
provision of temporary refuges where appropriate; daily checks of excavations
with escape ramps overnight.

Nesting birds

- Avoid March to August. If unavoidable, ECoW checks and buffers as per Section
1.

Badger
- Vigilance for new setts; no works within 30 m of any active sett without ECoW

input and, if required, licence and timing restrictions. Secure bins and food waste
to avoid attraction.

Biosecurity and invasive species

- All plant and footwear to arrive clean and free from soil/vegetative material.
Visual checks at entry point.

- If invasive non-native species are identified, works in the affected area will cease
and a management plan will be prepared. Waste containing invasive propagules
to be consigned as controlled waste to licensed facilities.





Construction lighting plan

- No column lighting within or immediately adjacent to boundary habitats. Task
lighting only, capped at 20 lux at working plane, with zero spill beyond habitat
buffers.

- Warm spectrum LEDs (<2700 K), cowls and directional fittings. Lights on PIR
and time controls; no lighting of waterbodies.

Noise, vibration and dust control

- Best practicable means per BS 5228. Time restrictions for noisy works [insert
agreed hours]. Acoustic screening where practicable.

- Dust suppression by damping down, sheeting of loads.. Visual monitoring and
trigger-response criteria included in Appendix D.

Materials, waste and hazardous substances

- Site Waste Management Plan to classify waste streams; segregated skips; duty
of care documentation retained.

- Hazardous substances register maintained; COSHH risk assessments completed;
secure storage in bunded stores.

- No cement mixing within 10 m of drains or water; use lined mixing areas and
sealed containers.

Pond decommissioning and creation — construction controls

- Decommissioning sequence for existing pond to be set out in the Pond Creation
Method Statement (PCMS) and delivered under ECoW supervision and, if
applicable, under DLL or mitigation licence conditions. Key controls include
staged drawdown using clean pumps and silt socks; capture and translocation of
amphibians under licence if required; protection of downstream receptors using
settlement and silt curtains; careful removal of sludge to lined skips; and
backfilling with suitable inert material where approved.





- Creation of two new wildlife-led SuDS ponds in the approved locations with
gentle 1.6 to 110 margins, undulating shelves, maximum depth circa 1.2 m, clean
water inlets where practicable, and native marginal and aquatic planting. No fish
stocking. A minimum 2 m unmown wildlife buffer to be established around each
pond. Temporary fencing to exclude public and pets during establishment.

- Construction access and plant to avoid RPAs as per AMS; ground protection in
place where access is required near trees. Refuelling and plant maintenance
excluded from pond working area.

Water quality protection during excavation: perimeter silt fencing and
temporary settlement tanks for any dewatering; inspection after rainfall; records
held by Site Manager.

Drainage and SuDS integration

- Ponds, overflows, flow controls and maintenance access to be constructed
exactly as per the approved drainage drawings. Any change requires written
approval from the drainage engineer and ECoW to ensure ecological functionality
is retained.

- Surface water from trafficked areas to pass through treatment trains before
entering ponds. No direct discharge of contaminated runoff to ponds.

- A 5-year aftercare regime for ponds to be delivered via the LEMP and SuDS
maintenance plan, covering litter removal, selective vegetation management, and
desilting triggers. Access routes to respect RPAs and habitat buffers.

Incident response and stop-works protocol

- Any suspected breach of wildlife law, tree protection, pollution release, or
significant deviation from this CEMP triggers immediate stop works in the
affected area. The Site Manager contacts the ECoW and Project Arboriculturist;
incidents are logged and corrective actions agreed. Statutory bodies will be
notified where necessary.

- A flowchart and contact list are presented in Appendix B.





Induction, toolbox talks, supervision and auditing

- All personnel to undergo environmental briefing prior to starting on site.
Topic-specific toolbox talks to precede high-risk activities, including vegetation
clearance, soil strip, works near RPAs, pond decommissioning and creation, and
night work.

- ECoW attendance: Pre-commencement setup; supervision of all vegetation
clearance, pond decommissioning and creation, and any works within 10 m of
water or within RPAs as specified. Ad hoc audits at least fortnightly during core
construction.

- Records: ECoW visit reports; supervision sign-off sheets; photographic records;
training attendance logs; incident log. Copies held in the site CEMP file and
provided to the client and LPA upon request.

Programme and sequencing

- A high-level programme is provided in Appendix E showing key environmental
hold points: install TPP; establish no-go fencing; complete pre-commencement
surveys/licensing; undertake vegetation clearance under ECoW; decommission
existing pond; excavate and form new ponds; commence building works; hard
landscaping; soft landscaping and habitat creation; practical completion;
12-month defects; handover into LEMP.

Handover to LEMP and compliance monitoring

- On completion of construction, the site will transition to the LEMP and SuDS
maintenance plan. As-built drawings of ponds and softworks, plant schedules,
and a 5-year management plan will be provided. Year 1and Year 5 ECoW
compliance checks will confirm establishment and inform any corrective
management.





Document control

Revisions to this CEMP will be recorded below and issued to the project team and
LPA where relevant.

Appendix A: Drawing and document register

- Decision Notice - DM/23/2687 - 25th April 2024

- Preliminary Ecological Appraisal - David Archer Associates, April 2023.

- GCN report and eDNA 2023 - David Archer Associates, May 2023.

- Revised ecological response - David Archer Associates, 29th Novemlber 2023.

- FRA & SUDS Report 16920-01 - 16920-01 Woodside Grange Plot B - FRA & SuDS
Report - October 2025.

- Drainage layout 16920-HOP-ZZ-XX-DR-C-0511 - HOP - 31st October 2025.
- Proposed Site Plan K1177-01 - Neil Pike - 24th June 2025.

- Arboricultural Method Statement - ROAVR Group - November 2025.

- Tree Protection Plan - ROAVR Group - November 2025.

- Lighting plan for biodiversity - ROAVR Group - November 2025.

- Landscape GA and schedules - 7731.01 LP SEP'25 - September 2025.





Appendix B: Contacts and emergency flowchart

- Client: Trevor Lock
- Principal Contractor: TBC
- Site Manager/Environmental Manager: TBC

- ECoW: ROAVR Group - ecology@roavr-group.co.uk 01463 667 302
- Project Arboriculturist: support@roavr-group.co.uk 01463 667 302

- Drainage Engineer: TBC

- Environment Agency Incident Hotline: 0800 80 70 60

- Natural England: 0300 060 3900

- Wildlife rescue (out of hours): 01825 873003 - East Sussex Wildlife Rescue

- Emergency services: 999



mailto:ecology@roavr-group.co.uk

mailto:support@roavr-group.co.uk

https://www.google.com/search?q=wildlife+rescue+haywards+heath&sca_esv=43c455ccb544f936&sxsrf=AE3TifO5eaPnB1nx2up6hnVcGmcLmDUfxg%3A1764064508642&ei=_Hwlabv_Jp-fhbIP0c2gyA8&ved=0ahUKEwi77ZezhI2RAxWfT0EAHdEmCPkQ4dUDCBE&uact=5&oq=wildlife+rescue+haywards+heath&gs_lp=Egxnd3Mtd2l6LXNlcnAiHndpbGRsaWZlIHJlc2N1ZSBoYXl3YXJkcyBoZWF0aDIFEAAYgAQyBhAAGBYYHjILEAAYgAQYhgMYigUyCxAAGIAEGIYDGIoFMgsQABiABBiGAxiKBTILEAAYgAQYhgMYigUyCxAAGIAEGIYDGIoFMggQABiABBiiBDIIEAAYgAQYogQyCBAAGIAEGKIESOE3UJEIWOIycAN4AZABAJgBeKABwhaqAQQyMy43uAEDyAEA-&sclient=gws-wiz-serp&lqi=Ch53aWxkbGlmZSByZXNjdWUgaGF5d2FyZHMgaGVhdGhIqJ6f9u2AgIAIWigQABABGAAYASIed2lsZGxpZmUgcmVzY3VlIGhheXdhcmRzIGhlYXRokgEHY2hhcml0eZoBJENoZERTVWhOTUc5blMwVkpRMEZuU1VOWGMyVmlSRjluUlJBQvoBBAgAEEs#



Appendix C:. Environmental risk register and method control
tables

This appendix sets out the project-specific environmental risks, pre-mitigation risk
ratings, method controls, responsibilities, monitoring checks, residual risks and
cross-references to the CEMP.

Ratings use a qualitative scale: Likelihood (L) and Consequence (C) scored
Low/Medium/High; Residual Risk is the expected risk after controls. Hold points
identify works that must not proceed without ECoW and, where applicable,
Project Arboriculturist sign-off and LPA agreement.

General assumptions - Final pond locations, tree protection and drainage details
to be inserted once updated AMS/TPP and drainage drawings are issued. - GCN
pathway to be confirmed: District Level Licensing or updated 2026 surveys. Until
then, intrusive works to the existing pond and proposed pond footprints are a
hold point.

Risk register tables

Great crested newt (GCN) - pond decommissioning and new pond excavation
Pre-mitigation risk: L High, C High

Controls and method:

- Compliance pathway confirmed in writing: DLL acceptance or updated 2026
surveys with agreed method. No intrusive pond works before pathway is in place.

- ECoW supervision throughout decommissioning and excavation; toolbox talks to
all operatives.

- Staged drawdown of existing pond using screened intakes and silt control,
amphibian capture and handling only by licensed ecologists if required by licence.

- Exclusion fencing and trapping only where required by licence/DLL; otherwise
RAMSs for low-risk areas only.

- Night working in pond zones prohibited; daily excavation checks and escape
ramps in open trenches. Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW; Client for
licensing decision. Monitoring and evidence: ECoW site diary; licence/DLL
documentation; photo records; silt water quality checks. Residual risk: Low to
Medium (subject to licence/DLL).

Hold point: Do not start pond decommissioning or excavation until licence/DLL
or updated surveys and LPA agreement are in place.





GCN - general groundworks away from ponds Pre-mitigation risk: L Medium, C
Medium

Controls and method:

- Precautionary RAMs: staged strim, hand search of refugia, ECoW briefings,
supervised initial topsoil strip in 100 mm layers in moderate-risk areas.

- Limit vehicle speeds to 5 mph; cover or ramp all excavations overnight.
Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW. Monitoring: ECoW spot checks; daily
toolbox attendance; excavation check logs. Residual risk: Low.

Dormouse - woody vegetation clearance Pre-mitigation risk: L Medium, C
Medium Controls and method:

- Programme clearance of woody vegetation above 0.5 m in December to
February with ECoW present; ground clearance April to November using staged
techniques.

- Retain and protect boundary habitats; no lighting onto retained
hedgerows/woodland edges.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW.

Monitoring: Clearance permits; ECoW check sheets; photo records. Residual risk:
Low.

Bats - lighting and tree works
Pre-mitigation risk: L Medium, C High Controls and method:

- Biodiversity-sensitive lighting plan: <2700 K, cowled, task-focused, PIR/timers;
verify O lux spill onto corridors.

- Potential roost features: arboricultural supervision; soft-felling techniques;
stop-works if roost discovered; consult ECoW.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; Lighting designer; Project Arboriculturist;
ECoW.

Monitoring: Lux checks at dusk; lighting inspection sheets; tree work supervision
forms.

Residual risk: Low.

Nesting birds — vegetation and structure works

Pre-mitigation risk: L High, C Medium





Controls and method:

- Avoid March to August where practicable; if unavoidable, ECoW pre-check within
24 hours and exclusion buffers around active nests until fledging.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW.
Monitoring: Pre-clearance check records; nest buffer map.
Residual risk: Low.

Reptiles and hedgehog - grassland and rubble clearance

Pre-mitigation risk: L Medium, C Medium
Controls and method:

- Two-stage cut; directional clearance towards retained habitat; hand search of
refugia; cap pipe ends overnight; provide ramps from trenches.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW.
Monitoring: Toolbox attendance; daily checks log.
Residual risk: Low.

Badger - unexpected sett discovery
Pre-mitigation risk: L Low, C High

Controls and method:

- Site induction on signs of badger; immediate stop works within 30 m if a sett is
found; ECoW inspection and advice; licence and timing if required.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW.
Monitoring: Incident log; ECoW report.

Residual risk: Low.





Trees — Root Protection Areas (RPAs) and canopies

Pre-mitigation risk: L High, C High
Controls and method:
- Erect TPP fencing before any works; no storage, mixing or traffic in RPAs.

- Works near/within RPAs only under Project Arboriculturist supervision using
no-dig and hand techniques; cellular confinement where specified.

- Align ponds, drains and overflows to avoid RPAs; any unavoidable incursion to be
method-led and approved in writing by the Project Arboriculturist and ECoW.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; Project Arboriculturist; ECoOW.
Monitoring: Weekly fence inspections; supervision records; photos.
Residual risk: Low to Medium.

Hold point: Do not break ground inside RPAs without written method approval
and arboricultural supervision scheduled.

Soils - stripping, storage and reinstatement
Pre-mitigation risk: L High, C Medium
Controls and method:

- Strip topsoil and subsoil separately in dry conditions where practicable; stockpile
height limits; no trafficking on wet soils; weed and erosion control; protect
stockpiles from runoff.

Responsible: Principal Contractor.
Monitoring: Daily inspections; weather logs; photo records.
Residual risk: Low.

Water pollution - silt, cement and hydrocarbons

Pre-mitigation risk: L High, C High
Controls and method:

- Install silt fencing, settlement tanks and drain inlet protection before earthworks;
inspect after rainfall.

- Line and contain concrete washout; no washout to ground; refuelling in bunded
area =210 m from drains and water; spill kits at all plant.





- Emergency spill response per Section 19.
Responsible: Principal Contractor; Site Manager.

Monitoring: Silt and turbidity visual checks; spill kit checklist; washout inspection
log.

Residual risk: Low.

SuDS and pond water quality — construction phase

Pre-mitigation risk: L Medium, C High
Controls and method:

- Isolate clean and dirty water; treatment train installed prior to connecting to
ponds; no direct discharge of contaminated runoff; phased opening of inlets
post-commissioning.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; Drainage Engineer; ECoW.
Monitoring: Inspection of controls; water clarity logs; photo records.

Residual risk: Low.

Invasive non-native species (INNS) and biosecurity
Pre-mitigation risk: L Low, C Medium
Controls and method:

- Clean-down of plant and footwear; vigilance during clearance; if INNS identified,
isolate area and implement a management plan; dispose of INNS waste at
licensed facilities.

Responsible: Principal Contractor; ECoW.
Monitoring: Induction records; inspection checklists; waste consignment notes.

Residual risk: Low.





Appendix D: Monitoring templates and checklists

EXAMPLES.

Project: 25_ECO_10_94

Site: Woodside Grange

Planning reference: TBC

Principal Contractor: TBC

ECoW: ROAVR Group

Project Arboriculturist: ROAVR Group

Daily environmental inspection checklist

Date:
Time:
Weather:

Inspector name/role:

Area(s) inspected:

A. Site boundaries and housekeeping

Perimeter fencing and signage intact and secure. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
Public interfaces safe and unobstructed. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]

Walkways clear; materials stored in designated areas. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]

Waste segregated; skips covered; no windblown litter. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]

B. Ecology controls

No-go areas and ecological buffers fenced and respected. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
ECoW method permits in place for today's works. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
Excavations checked for trapped wildlife; ramps installed. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
Vegetation clearance following agreed RAMs and seasons. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]





C. Trees and soils

Tree Protection Plan fencing intact; no breaches. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
No storage, mixing, or trafficking in RPAs. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
Soil stockpiles segregated (topsoil/subsoil), stable, covered. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]

D. Water and pollution prevention

Silt fencing and settlement measures installed and effective. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
Drains protected with gully socks/booms as required. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]

Fuel and chemical stores bunded and locked; spill kits available. Yes/No/NA Notes:
[]

Concrete washout lined and contained; no discharge to ground. Yes/No/NA Notes:

[]

E. SuDS and pond works (if applicable today)

Works authorised by ECoW/licence; hold points observed. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]
No turbid discharge to ponds; treatment train functioning. Yes/No/NA Notes: [ ]

Actions required and deadlines: []

Persons responsible: []

Re-inspection due: []

Signature inspector: [ ] Signature Site Manager: [ ]





Tree protection inspection checklist
Refer to Tree Report and AMS.

Toolbox talk attendance sheet

Date:
Time:

Location:

Talk topic: [e.g. Vegetation clearance RAMs / Works near RPAs / Pond
decommissioning]

Presenter (name/role): [ ] Duration: []

Learning outcomes covered

1. Key risks and legal duties explained. Yes/No
2. Method sequence and hold points. Yes/No
3. Emergency and stop-works procedure. Yes/No

4. Questions answered; understanding checked. Yes/No

Attendees (print name, company, role, signature)

1. [Name] [Company] [Role] [Signature]





6. Incident report form

Complete within 24 hours of any environmental incident, near miss or
non-conformance.

A. Incident details

Date: [] Time: [] Reported by (name/role): []

Location (grid refiwhat3words/plan ref): [ ]

Type: Pollution/Protected species/Trees/Soils/Noise/Dust/Lighting/Public
safety/Other [circle]

Description of event and immediate impacts: [ ]

Weather at time: []

B. Initial response

Stop-works initiated: Yes/No Time: [ ] Area isolated: Yes/No
Spill kits or controls deployed: Yes/No Details: [ ]

ECoW notified: Yes/No Time: [] Name: [ ]

Arboriculturist notified: Yes/No Time: [] Name: []
Regulators notified (EA/NE/LPA): Yes/No Time: [ ] Contact: []
Photos taken: Yes/No File refs: [ ]

C. Root cause and classification

Immediate cause(s): []

Underlying cause(s): []

Severity: Minor/Moderate/Major [circle]

Pollution to water: Yes/No Estimated volume and media: []
Wildlife impact: Yes/No Species: [ ]

Tree/RPA impact: Yes/No Tree ID(s): [ ]

D. Corrective and preventive actions

Short-term corrective actions taken: []

Waste and cleanup consigned to: [ ] Consignment notes refs: [ ]
Preventive actions to avoid recurrence: [ ]

Responsible person(s): [] Target dates: []

E. Closure

Follow-up inspections completed: Yes/No Dates: [ ]

Residual risks addressed: Yes/No Details: [ ]

Reported to client and filed in CEMP: Yes/No Date: [ ]

Prepared by (name/role): [] Signature: [] Date: []

Approved by Site Manager: [ ] Signature: [] Date: []

ECoW review: [comments/signature/date]

Arboriculturist review (if tree related): [commments/signature/date]





Appendix E: Programme and hold points

- Gantt-style outline with environmental gates and dependencies; integration
with survey/licensing windows.

To be added by Principal Contractor.





Appendix F: Species contingency protocols

General approach for any protected species encounter:

1. Stop works immediately in the affected area; make the site safe.

2. Establish a precautionary cordon; do not touch or move the animal or
feature.

3. Inform the Site Manager at once. The Site Manager calls the Ecological
Clerk of Works (ECoW). If trees are involved, also call the Project

Arboriculturist.

4. Record time, location (plan reference or what3words), photographs and
names of witnesses.

5. Maintain conditions: keep the area quiet, shaded, and undisturbed; prevent
fumes, lighting or vibration.

6. Do not resume until the ECoW confirms the method and any permits or
licences required.

Contact chain and roles

Operative » Site Manager » ECoW (primary) » Project Arboriculturist (if tree
related) » Principal Contractor's Environmental Manager - Client.

Regulators contacted by ECoW or Site Manager as instructed: Natural England or
NatureSpace Hub if DLL applies; Environment Agency if pollution risk; LPA
ecologist if required.

Great crested newt (GCN)
Immmediate actions

- Cordon at least 20 metres around the animal or pond margin if feasible.
- Do not handle GCN or other amphibians unless instructed by a licensed
ecologist.

Next steps

- ECoW assesses whether District Level Licensing or a mitigation licence applies,
or whether RAMs can lawfully manage risk for very limited tasks away from ponds.
- Resume only under the ECoW'’s written instruction and, where relevant, licence
conditions.





Bats
Immediate actions

- If a bat, a roosting feature, or droppings are found, stop works and quieten the
area.

- Maintain darkness; turn off task lighting; do not handle bats.

Next steps

- Bat-licensed ecologist to inspect and advise on exclusion timing, soft-opening,
or licence requirements.

- Works near roosts resume only under written method and supervision as
required.

Hazel dormouse
Immediate actions

- If a dormouse or probable nest is found during shrub or hedgerow works, stop
and cordon at least 10 metres.
- Do not remove brash or disturb the nest.

Next steps

- Dormouse-licensed ecologist to confirm status and method.
- Clearance may be re-sequenced or timed seasonally; licensing may be needed if
works must proceed.

Reptiles (grass snake, slow worm, common lizard; treat adder with caution)
Immediate actions

- Stop works; cordon at least 5 metres; allow reptile to disperse naturally.
- Do not attempt capture unless instructed by the ECoW.

Next steps

- ECoW to set staged vegetation cuts, hand searches, and refuge checks; agree
any phased displacement before works resume.

Nesting birds
Immediate actions

- If an active nest is found, stop and establish a buffer: typically 5 to 10 metres for
small passerines; larger buffers if disturbance risk is higher or for larger species.
- Do not move the nest, eggs or chicks.





Next steps

- ECoW confirms buffer size and records nest status.
- Resume only when fledging has occurred or an alternative method avoids
disturbance.

Badger
Immmediate actions

- If a sett entrance or fresh field signs are found, stop within 30 metres and make
safe.
- Keep plant and storage away; avoid vibration and lighting.

Next steps

- ECoW to confirm sett activity and advise.
- If works within exclusion distances are required, timing restrictions and a licence
may be needed before resuming.

Pollution and welfare safeguards for all finds

- Prevent runoff or spills entering waterbodies; deploy spill kits or silt controls if
needed.

- Keep people and pets away; never confine or feed wild animals.

- In an injured-animal scenario, the ECoW will advise on contacting a licensed
rehabilitator; handling only by competent personnel.

Documentation

- The Site Manager files a brief discovery report with photos, the ECoW's
instruction, any licence references and the time that works recommenced.

- All incidents are logged in the CEMP incident register and reviewed at the next
coordination meeting.





Appendix G: Site environmental constraints plan

To be created with the principal contractor and cross referenced with the tree
protection plan.






Woodland Solutions (Northern) Ltd t/a ROAVR Group
‘ Marr House

Beechwood Business Park

ROAVR | GROUP Inverness

V2 3BW
WWW.roavr-group.co.uk
T: 01463 667302

25th November 2025.

Project: Woodside Grange, Woodsland Road, Hassocks, West Sussex, BN6 8EX
LPA reference: DM/23/2687

Drawing title: Biodiversity Enhancement Layout — Short-form Plan to accompany
BNG Statement

Client: Trevor Lock

Consultant: ROAVR Group — Principal Ecologist

Drawing status: Draft for review

Scale: To be read alongside Reserved Matters plans.

Base: To be overlaid on the latest RM site layout/landscape GA when issued.

This plan illustrates the package of proportionate biodiversity enhancements to
satisfy local policy expectations at Reserved Matters, consistent with the outline
permission conditions and the submitted PEA. Measures are keyed for easy
transfer to the RM landscape drawings and to aid condition discharge without a
full BNG metric.

General notes

1. Retain all existing woodland and boundary hedgerows except where RM
access or visibility splays are essential. Any unavoidable loss to be
compensated on a like-for-like or better basis on-site.

2. Protect retained trees and hedgerows in accordance with BS 5837:2012
using tree protection fencing and no-dig construction where required.

3. All native species and mixes to be locally appropriate to the High
Weald/Low Weald context. Substitutions only by ecologist approval.

4. Aftercare periods are minimum 5 years with replacement of failures in the
next planting season.





5. External lighting to follow the sensitive lighting notes on this sheet and the
RM lighting plan.

Keyed enhancements.

E1 Native hedgerow creation and gapping-up: Establish new lengths and
reinforce existing hedgelines where breaks occur, delivering equal or greater
length than any short sections removed for access. Indicative mix (rural edge):
hawthorn 40%, blackthorn 20%, hazel 10%, field maple 10%, holly 5%, dog rose 5%,
spindle 5%, guelder rose 5%. Plant as double staggered row at 5-6 plants per
metre. Include hedgerow trees at 1 per 30 m, alternating oak, field maple and
small-leaved lime.

E2 Native standard and heavy-standard tree planting: Focus within open space
and along boundaries to strengthen structure and foraging. Indicative palette:
pedunculate oak, field maple, downy birch, wild cherry, small-leaved lime, rowan.
Pit sizes and staking to BS 8545:2014 with irrigation pipes as required.

E3 Pond creation/enhancement: Create 2 x wildlife ponds with varied margins and
shelves. No fish introduction. Plant native emergent and marginal commmunities.
Provide a minimum 2 m unmown buffer around the pond.

E4 Woodland management compartments: Light selective thinning to release
retained stems, coppice hazel where present, retain standing and fallen
deadwood, introduce understorey whips of hazel, holly and hawthorn to increase
structural diversity. Manage invasive non-native shrubs by phased removal.

E5 Nesting and roosting provision: Install a minimum of 2 bat boxes and 2 bird
boxes per new dwelling or at least 20 units across the scheme, whichever is fewer,
using a mix of integrated and tree-mounted types. Bat boxes to be sited on
retained mature trees or integrated into buildings at 4-6 m height on east,
south-east or south aspects near commmuting features. Bird boxes include 32 mm
hole, 28 mm hole and open-front types placed 3-4 m high and away from direct
lighting.

E6 Wildflower grassland enhancement: Convert selected amenity grassland strips
and POS into species-rich swards using a neutral low-fertility mix suitable for
Sussex clay loams. Preparation to include nutrient reduction where feasible,
autumn sowing at 4 g/m?, and a cut-and-collect regime with a spring cut and two
late summer cuts.

E7 Deadwood, log and brash habitat piles: Locate within woodland edge and
hedgerow bases at roughly 1 per 100 m, using arisings from site management.

E8 Hedgehog highways and small-mammal permeability: Provide 130 mm by 130
mm holes at the base of garden fences at least one per plot on shared
boundaries. Avoid gravel boards without openings.





E9 SuDS and rain garden planting: Where SuDS features are present, plant with
native wet-tolerant forbs and grasses appropriate to attenuation and conveyance
functions; manage to avoid nutrient build-up and maintain infiltration.

Sensitive lighting notes (apply to all RM lighting)

L1 Maintain dark corridors along woodland edges, hedgerows and the pond with
target baseline of 0.5 lux at habitat edges and O lux on the water surface;
demonstrate with isolux plots on the RM lighting plan.

L2 Use warm spectrum light sources of 2700 K or lower, full cut-off luminaires,
and back-shields where columns abut sensitive habitat.

L3 Curfew controls and dimming after 22:00; avoid upward light spill and column
siting within 10 m of key linear features where practicable.

Management and aftercare summary

M1 Hedgerows: Trim on a two- or three-year rotation outside bird breeding
season, allowing flowering and berrying. Replace failures annually in years 1-5.

M2 Trees: Watering in years 1-3, formative pruning in winter year 3, replace failures
above 10% in years 1-5.

M3 Pond: Control invasive species annually, maintain 50-70% marginal cover,
remove silt on a 7-10-year cycle as required.

M4 Grassland: Follow cut-and-collect regime; remove arisings to maintain low soil
fertility and species richness.

Plan annotations to add when base layout is provided

A. Mark retained woodland with hatch and label as retained and managed.

B. Indicate hedgerow breaks required for access and corresponding E1
compensatory planting lengths.

C. Show locations of E5 bat and bird boxes with symbols and schedules keyed to
unit types.

D. Plot isolux lines from the RM lighting design and confirmn compliance with
L1-L3.

Legend (for drafting on GA)

Retained woodland - dark green hatch

Retained hedgerow - solid green line

New native hedgerow (E1) — dashed green line

New native trees (E2) — green dots with species code

Pond/pond enhancement (E3) - blue outline with marginal buffer
Wildflower grassland (E6) — light green stipple

Deadwood/brash piles (E7) — brown triangle symbol

Hedgehog highway (E8) — small square icon on boundary

Lux contour 0.5/1.0/5.0 - red isolux lines with labels





Compliance cross-reference

This plan supports the short-form BNG Statement confirming no net loss of
habitat and qualitative uplift via embedded enhancements. It is intended to
accompany Reserved Matters and subsequent condition discharge submissions.
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25th November 2025.
To Whom It May Concern.

Site: Woodside Grange, Woodsland Road, Hassocks, West Sussex, BN6 8EX
LPA reference: DM/23/2687
Applicant: Trevor Lock

We write in relation to the above site to confirm the Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG)
position for the forthcoming Reserved Matters submission.

Statutory BNG applicability

Outline planning permission was granted on 25 April 2024 with appearance and
landscaping reserved. As the outline consent predates commencement of
mandatory BNG, subsequent Reserved Matters are not subject to the statutory
BNG requirement.

Local policy reassurance and no-net-loss position

Notwithstanding the statutory exemption, the scheme maintains ecological value
and secures proportionate enhancement consistent with the approved ecology
evidence and the outline conditions. The decision notice requires implementation
of the submitted PEA and ecological response, a Biodiversity Enhancement
Layout at Reserved Matters, and a bat-sensitive external lighting scheme. These
controls ensure that retained habitats and protected species are safeguarded and
that enhancements are delivered through detailed design.

Summary of habitats and effect of the proposals

The site comprises neutral grassland, lowland mixed deciduous woodland and
hedgerows, a pond, scattered trees and garden habitats. The proposals retain the
priority woodland and boundary hedgerows save for two short access gaps and
remove a limited area of frequently mown grassland of low ecological value, with
any necessary tree loss offset by native replacement planting. On this basis, and
with the embedded mitigation and planting, the scheme will result in no net loss
of habitat and a qualitative uplift in site biodiversity.





Enhancement measures to be secured at Reserved Matters

The following measures will be incorporated into the Biodiversity Enhancement
Layout at Reserved Matters to satisfy the outline conditions and local policy
expectations:

- Native replacement hedgerow planting equal to or greater than the short
lengths removed for access, connected to retained boundary vegetation to
strengthen green corridors.

- New native trees and wildlife-friendly planting to reinforce site structure and
foraging resources, with species drawn from locally appropriate lists.

- Two integrated or mounted bird boxes and two bat boxes on suitable retained
trees or new buildings, positioned and oriented to best-practice specifications.

- Pond enhancement through native marginal and aquatic planting and
management to improve macrophyte cover and wildlife value, with fish and
domestic waterfowl excluded if present.

- Woodland management targeting removal of non-native species, creation of
understorey, retention of deadwood and selective thinning to improve structure
and resilience.

- Sensitive external lighting design to maintain dark corridors along woodland
and hedgerow edges, consistent with bat guidance and the outline lighting
condition.

The Reserved Matters proposals are exempt from statutory BNG by virtue of the
outline permission date. The scheme will deliver no net loss of habitat and
measurable qualitative enhancements secured through the Biodiversity
Enhancement Layout and ecology conditions at Reserved Matters.

We therefore consider that this short-form BNG Statement is sufficient to address
any local policy requirements without the need for a full metric-based
submission.

Kind regards

MW Harmswor+th

Mr. Matthew Harmsworth FDSc Arb, Tech.Arbor.A, Dip RS, BSs Env, Assoc. ICFor
Director
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Pond Creation Method Statement

Purpose and scope

This method statement sets out the construction sequence, environmental
controls and aftercare for decommissioning the existing pond and creating two
new wildlife-led SuDS ponds within the application boundary. It ensures
compliance with planning conditions, the CEMP, the Arboricultural Method
Statement and Tree Protection Plan, and the drainage intent shown on drawing
16920-HOP-ZZ-XX-DR-C-0511 PLOT B LAYOUT (latest revision). It applies to all
contractors and sub-contractors.

Compliance and approvals

No intrusive works to the existing pond or new pond footprints shall commmence
until great crested newt compliance is confirmed. The lawful routes are either
District Level Licensing or updated 2026 survey evidence leading to an agreed
method and, if required, a mitigation licence. Works near trees must follow the
AMS/TPP and BS 5837, with the Project Arboriculturist in attendance where
specified. Pollution prevention must follow the CEMP and CIRIA guidance. Any
deviation from this method requires prior written approval from the Ecological
Clerk of Works and, where relevant, the Project Arboriculturist and drainage
engineer.

Design summary

The two new ponds will function as clean-water wildlife features integrated with
the approved SuDS treatment train.

Each pond will be formed with gently shelving margins and varied depths to
maximise habitat value while providing storage and flow attenuation as per the
drainage drawings.

Margins will be graded at approximately 1:6 to 1:10 from bank top to water, with
undulating shelves at about 0.1 to 0.3 metres and 0.5 to 0.7 metres below normal
water level to diversify planting niches. Maximum depth will be approximately 1.2
metres in a small central sump to reduce summer warming. Inlets and outlets will
be located and built exactly as the drainage drawings specify, with stilling, scour
protection and pre-treatment, for example via swales, sumps or level spreaders.





The ponds will not be stocked with fish, and nutrient-rich topsoil will not be used
in basins or on shelves. Pond footprints and service runs will be set outside root
protection areas wherever practicable; where proximity is unavoidable the detail
will be agreed with the Project Arboriculturist and constructed using no-dig or
hand techniques with ground protection.

Materials and formation

Excavated material will be segregated into topsoil and subsoil. Ponds will be
formed predominantly in a firm, cohesive subsail.

Where ground conditions require lining to retain standing water, a compacted
clay or bentonite blanket will be used with careful feathering at margins to avoid
hard edges; synthetic liners will only be used if agreed, with geotextile protection
and wildlife escape shelves.

Margins will receive a thin layer of clean sand and low-nutrient subsoil to a depth
of about 100 to 150 millimetres to support planting. Scour protection at inlets and
outlets will use clean graded stone and coir rolls or pallets as specified by the
drainage engineer and the ECoW. All imported materials will be free of invasive
propagules.

Native planting and buffers

Planting will favour locally appropriate native species and natural colonisation.
Marginal and emergent species will include a mix such as marsh marigold, water
mint, purple loosestrife, gypsywort, branched bur-reed, water plantain and lesser
pond sedge, with submerged oxygenators such as hornwort or water crowfoot
where water quality allows. No invasive non-native species will be introduced. A
minimum unmown wildlife buffer of two metres will be established around each
pond, widening where space permits. The buffer will be protected from trafficking
and storage and will be kept unlit.





Sequencing and method

Pre-commencement: Erect tree protection and ecological no-go fencing, install
access and ground protection, set out pond footprints and haul routes with the
ECoW and Project Arboriculturist, and install pollution controls including silt
fencing, temporary bunds, drain inlet protection, a lined concrete washout and a
bunded fuel store. Brief operatives via toolbox talks covering this method,
protected species and spill response. Confirm the GCN compliance route in
writing.

Existing pond decommissioning: Under ECoW + ACoW supervision and in
accordance with the licence or DLL if applicable, draw down water in stages using
a screened pump intake to deter entrainment. Maintain silt socks on the outlet,
and hold turbid water in temporary settlement as instructed by the ECoW and
drainage engineer. Where required by licence, undertake amphibian capture and
relocation by a licensed ecologist. Remove soft sediment carefully to lined skips
and dispose of at a suitably permitted facility. Backfill the void with suitable inert
subsoil in compacted layers and surface with topsoil to tie into surrounding levels,
unless the approved landscape plan specifies an alternative end-state.

New pond excavation: Strip and store topsoil separately, keeping stockpiles
outside root protection areas and away from drains. Excavate to formation in
subsoil, maintaining the agreed shelves and margins. Where near trees, excavate
by hand or with air spade under arboricultural supervision and install any ground
protection or no-dig construction specified. Install inlets, outlets, headwalls, orifice
plates and overflow structures exactly as per the drainage drawings. Place scour
protection and coir edging as detailed. Do not connect inlets until the basin is
planted and the treatment train upstream is operational and stable.

Planting and commissioning: Dress shelves and margins with low-nutrient
subsoil and light sand to the specified depth. Plant in clumps and belts to create
structural variety, leaving open water areas for invertebrates and amphibians.
Water with clean water only; do not introduce tap water conditioning agents or
fertilisers. Install temporary low fencing around margins if public access is
possible during establishment. Once planting is complete and stable, open the
inlets and allow the pond to fill naturally. Do not introduce fish or ornamental
species.





Pollution prevention and water quality protection

Silt fencing, settlement and drain protection will be in place before soil stripping
and excavation. These measures will be inspected daily and after heavy rain.
Concrete washout will be lined and contained, with no discharge to ground.
Refuelling will be in a designated bunded area at least ten metres from drains
and water, with spill kits adjacent. Any accidental spillage will trigger the
stop-works and incident response detailed in the CEMP.

Arboricultural controls and tree removals

Tree removals, if required to achieve the approved pond layout, will be undertaken
by qualified arborists under the Project Arboriculturist’s supervision and in
accordance with the AMS/TPP and BS 3998. Stumps within root protection areas
will be retained and cut flush unless the Arboriculturist directs otherwise. Any
excavation within or near root protection areas will be hand dug, with roots over
25 millimetres retained or cleanly cut as directed. No storage, mixing, drainage or
irrigation lines will be installed within root protection areas unless expressly
agreed.

Lighting, noise and working hours

No lighting will be directed towards the ponds or boundary habitats. Night
working is not permitted for pond decommissioning or excavation. Noisy
operations will be confined to agreed working hours and will follow best
practicable means to minimise disturbance to wildlife.

Health, safety and access

Access routes will be agreed in advance, set on ground protection where
necessary and kept clear of root protection areas and habitat buffers. Edges of
open excavations will be battered back or fenced, with escape ramps installed
overnight to protect wildlife. Plant will not enter the pond basins once shelves are
formed, except where low-ground-pressure equipment is expressly permitted by
the ECoW.

Hold points

Intrusive pond works must not start until the great crested newt compliance
route is confirmed. Breaking ground within or immediately adjacent to root
protection areas must not occur without the Project Arboriculturist's written
method and supervision in place. Connecting inlets to the ponds must not occur
until planting is complete, pollution controls are stable and the ECoW has
confirmed readiness.





As-built records and handover

On completion, provide an as-built survey of pond extents, levels, inlets and
outlets, dated photographs of key construction stages, and a brief ECoW
completion note confirming that the method has been followed or explaining any
approved departures. Handover the ponds into the five-year LEMP and the SuDS
maintenance plan, with the agreed access arrangements, inspection frequencies
and trigger levels for litter removal, selective vegetation management and
desilting.

Establishment and aftercare

For the first year, inspect fortnightly for the first two months then monthly,
focusing on water clarity, plant establishment and erosion. Remove litter and
invasive volunteers promptly. Maintain a two-metre unmown buffer and avoid
nutrient inputs. Years two to five will follow the LEMP, with ECoW checks in year
one and year five to verify establishment and advise on any corrective
management.

Contingencies

If water fails to retain after first fill, consult the engineer and ECoW to diagnose
and implement a lining remedy. If turbidity or cementitious residues are detected,
isolate inlets, enhance settlement and deploy absorbent booms as required, and
investigate the source before reopening. Any discovery of protected fauna outside
the anticipated method will trigger the species contingency protocols and the
stop-works procedure set out in the CEMP.

Contacts and supervision

The Principal Contractor will programme ECoW attendance for pond
decommissioning, excavation, planting and commissioning, and will arrange
Project Arboriculturist supervision for works near trees. Contact details,
emergency procedures and the stop-works flow diagram are as set out in the
CEMP.





